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Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (NYSE: AMG) is an asset management

company that acquires and holds majority interests in a diverse group 

of growing, mid-sized investment management firms (its “Affiliates”).

AMG’s innovative approach preserves the entrepreneurial orientation

that distinguishes the most successful investment management firms by:

• Maintaining and enhancing Affiliate managers’ equity incentives  

in their firms;  

• Allowing Affiliate managers to retain operational autonomy, thereby

preserving each Affiliate’s distinct culture and investment focus; and

• Providing Affiliates with the ability to realize the benefits of scale 

economies in distribution, operations and technology.

AMG grows both through the internal growth of its existing Affiliates

and through investments in new Affiliates. Since its founding, the

Company has successfully invested in 15 Affiliates which, as of December

31, 2000, collectively managed over $77 billion in assets across a broad

range of products, investment styles and distribution channels. AMG has

consistently achieved substantial growth in earnings and cash flow. 

In 2000, the Company’s Cash EPS, excluding performance fees,

increased 35%.
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Unless otherwise noted, data pertaining to assets under management is stated as of December 31, 2000. Excluding information in the Selected Historical Financial Data
table, earnings per share and cash earnings per share for 1997 are pro forma and assume AMG’s 1997 investments, related financings and initial public offering occurred
as of the beginning of that year.

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

(in millions, except as indicated and per share data)

OPERATING RESULTS

Revenues
EBITDA (1)

Net income
Cash Net Income (2)

Earnings per share – diluted
Cash earnings per share (3) – diluted

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total assets
Total debt
Stockholders’ equity

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

Assets under management (at period end, in billions)

Average shares outstanding – diluted

1998

$238.5
76.3
25.6
45.7

$ 1.33
2.38

$605.3
213.3
313.7

$ 57.7

19.2

1999

$518.7
166.8

72.2
98.3

$ 3.18
4.33

$909.1
175.3
478.0

$ 82.0

22.7

2000

$458.7
142.4

56.7
87.7

$ 2.49
3.85

$793.7
151.8
493.9

$ 77.5

22.8

Years ended December 31,

(1) Earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.
(2) Net income plus depreciation and amortization.
(3) Cash Net Income on a per share basis.

QUARTERLY CASH EPS

4Q97                             4Q98                           4Q99                             4Q00

$1.20

$1.00

$0.80

$0.60

$0.40

$0.20
■ Performance Fees (after tax)

■ Non-Cash Charges

■ EPS (excluding the impact of 
performance fees)

$2.22



L E T T E R  T O  S H A R E H O L D E R S

W e are very pleased with AMG’s results

for 2000. The strong and balanced

performance of our Affiliates allowed

AMG to continue its earnings momentum, with Cash

EPS, excluding performance fees, growing 35%,

despite a difficult equity market environment. This

earnings growth for 2000 followed excellent results in

1998 and 1999 – from the time of our Initial Public

Offering in November 1997 to December 31, 2000,

AMG achieved a compound annual growth rate in

Cash EPS of 37%.

AMG’s strong and consistent earnings growth reflects

outstanding performance by individual Affiliates and

the stability our Affiliates provide as a group through

their diverse products, investment styles and distri-

bution channels. AMG benefited in 2000 from the

internal growth of our Affiliates, especially those that

provide the largest contributions to our earnings.

While the financial results for 2000 did not reflect the

level of performance fee revenue achieved in 1999, we

are pleased with the growth of our asset-based fee rev-

enue for the year 2000.  Moreover, the broad range of

performance fee products among our Affiliates offers

the ongoing opportunity for additional revenue from

performance fees in future periods.  

The five Affiliates which were responsible for over

80% of AMG’s EBITDA generally achieved excellent

performance in their major products relative to their

benchmarks. Tweedy, Browne delivered outstanding

investment results, especially in its global value prod-

uct, resulting in the firm being named International

Fund Manager of the Year for 2000 by Morningstar,

Inc.® Rorer Asset Management, another value equity

Affiliate, also achieved excellent investment results and

substantial growth through net client cash flow.  Our

mutual fund subsidiary, The Managers Funds, was

among the fastest growing fund complexes in the

United States with 39% growth from client inflows

alone. Finally, we are quite pleased with the perform-

ances of Essex Investment Management and Frontier

Capital Management, even though, as growth equity

managers, their investment styles were not in favor in

2000. 

Reflecting the diversity of our broader Affiliate group,

these five Affiliates have a varied set of products and

investment styles, and participate across a range of dis-

tribution channels, with Essex and Frontier more

focused on institutional clients, and Tweedy, Browne,

Rorer and The Managers Funds more concentrated 

in the high net worth and retail channels. These

Affiliates have achieved excellent earnings growth 

following our investment – the average compound

annual growth in EBITDA since our investments in

them was 47% at year’s end.

The year 2000 was filled with positive developments

for AMG. One of the most significant occurred 

in January when we announced the completion of 

our investment in Frontier Capital Management, a

Boston-based firm specializing in growth equity man-

agement for institutional and high net worth clients.

We also helped existing Affiliates accelerate their

growth through the launch of two new retail funds
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using AMG’s mutual fund platform, The Managers

Funds. We also helped The Managers Funds acquire

three retail mutual funds, which broadened the firm’s

product offerings.  

After AMG invests in a new Affiliate, we work with its

management partners to accelerate their growth and

enhance their profitability. Our goal is to provide

them with many of the benefits of scale associated with

being part of a broader organization, while preserving

their operating autonomy. Initiatives we undertook 

on behalf of our Affiliates during 2000 included:

developing vehicles to reach new distribution chan-

nels; identifying and facilitating strategic partnerships

to broaden product or other capabilities; recruiting 

qualified, professional talent; and enhancing techno-

logical and operating efficiencies. As an example, we

introduced our proprietary Web-based Client Service

Platform, which enables Affiliates to offer secure, 

personalized account and investment information over

the Internet.  

We made excellent progress in strengthening AMG’s

position as the leader in helping growing, mid-sized

investment management firms solve their long-term

succession and continuity issues with an approach 

that best suits their clients, partners and employees.

Through our active calling program, we worked to

maintain and enhance existing relationships with

prospective Affiliates while introducing our approach

to attractive new prospects in North America and

Europe. 

We believe that for growing, mid-sized investment

management firms, AMG offers the best alternative 

to either selling 100% of a firm or deferring the reso-

lution of important succession and ownership trans-

ition issues. More and more, awareness of AMG’s

superior solution is being enhanced by the success our

From left: 
Bill Nutt, Chairman and CEO
Sean Healey, President and COO
Nate Dalton, Senior Vice President, Affiliate Development and General Counsel 
Seth Brennan, Senior Vice President, New Investments
Darrell Crate, Senior Vice President and CFO
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challenging market environment, demonstrates the

value and strength of our approach.  Looking to the

future, we continue to focus on our strategy of growth

through the internal development of existing Affiliates

and additional investments in new Affiliates.

We would like to thank our Affiliates, management,

employees and service providers for their contribu-

tions to a successful year.  Finally, all of us at AMG

would like to express our gratitude to our sharehold-

ers for their support.

Sincerely,

William J. Nutt Sean M. Healey
Chairman and CEO President and COO

Affiliates have achieved after partnering with AMG.

Our current Affiliates are AMG’s best references:  they

tell their peers at other firms, particularly prospective

new Affiliates, about our role as their partner and the

benefits of retained equity and continued autonomy.

By investing in a diverse group of high quality grow-

ing firms, AMG is able to generate strong recurring

cash flow, produce earnings growth and create value

for shareholders.  Our flexible capital structure enables

us to use the cash flow generated by existing Affiliates

to make investments in new ones, repurchase stock 

or repay debt, as appropriate. With AMG’s balanced

source of earnings, cash flow from operations and an

available credit facility of up to $400 million, we

believe that we are well positioned to continue making

accretive investments in new Affiliates.

We believe the strong and consistent growth achieved

by our Affiliates in 2000, particularly in the face of a
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AMG at
Affiliates grow through the addition and appreciation of their assets under management
from client cash flows and investment performance.  A number of AMG’s Affiliates also
have the opportunity for additional revenues from performance-based accounts.
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Distribution
Channels

50%Institutional

27%High Net Worth

23%Mutual Funds

Asset Class

92%Equities

4%Fixed Income

4%Other



At the holding company level, the range of Affiliate investment styles, client types and
distribution channels diversifies AMG’s sources of earnings in a balanced manner that
reduces the risks created by changing market environments and allows participation in
the fastest growing segments of the industry.
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Equity Style

Geography

77%Domestic Investments

23%Global Investments

52%Value

48%Growth

Figures represent percentages of EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2000.

a Glance



AMGoffers investors an excellent opportunity to partici-

pate in the growth of a diverse group of quality, 

mid-sized investment management firms. AMG’s

approach combines the focused investment disciplines and entrepreneurial cultures of

successful mid-sized investment firms with the diversification and scale of a $77 billion,

150 product investment management organization. AMG’s Affiliates have established

solid reputations within their markets, excellent records of performance within their

product niches and strong relationships with their clients.  

By providing for Affiliate managers to retain substantial direct equity in their firms,

AMG ensures that they will have significant incentives to continue growing their busi-

nesses. AMG’s partnership approach allows individual Affiliates to preserve their 
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distinctive operating and investment cultures, which are fundamental to their strong 

performance.

Affiliate Development — While AMG Affiliates are successful on their own, many find

that a relationship with the Company helps them increase assets under management and

improve operational efficiency.  

Strategic Support — AMG’s approach to offering strategic assistance to its Affiliates is

based on two principles.  First, AMG believes that its Affiliates are in the best position to

determine their ultimate direction.  Second, AMG believes that the holding company has

the expertise and scale to identify issues and opportunities for Affiliates, and to help act

on them.  There is strategic value in leveraging the capabilities of many Affiliates by 

11

tion



helping them acquire smaller investment management firms or divisions of firms.  As an

example of this kind of transaction, in 2000, AMG sourced, financed and structured the

acquisition of Smith Breeden Associates, Inc.’s retail business by an AMG Affiliate, The

Managers Funds.

Broadening Distribution — AMG also believes there is an opportunity to use the expert-

ise and scale of the holding company to help Affiliates access new distribution channels.

AMG’s 1999 acquisition of The Managers Funds was an attractive investment on its own,

and it also provides a mutual fund platform enabling our Affiliates with predominantly

institutional clients to access the retail mutual fund market without incurring large infra-

structure costs. Since the acquisition of The Managers Funds, AMG has created the

Managers AMG family of funds, and three Affiliates – Essex, Frontier and First

Quadrant – have launched mutual funds using this platform.  
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Investment Style: “Graham and Dodd” Value Equity

• Based in New York and London, Founded in 1920
• Domestic and Global Products
• High Net Worth, Institutional, Mutual Funds and Private Partnerships
• Named International Fund Manager of the Year for 2000 by Morningstar, Inc.®

• $8 Billion in Assets Under Management

T W E E D Y,  B R O W N E  C O M PA N Y  L L C

Tweedy,
Browne
Company LLC



focus
Economies of Scale and Enhanced Technology — AMG’s approach is to offer Affiliates

the advantages of scale where they exist, but to avoid interfering with their distinct oper-

ating and investment cultures. Through its Affiliate development activities, AMG seeks

to provide a range of business-enhancing opportunities for Affiliates, while allowing

them to decide which ones are most appropriate for their firms.  In 2000, AMG intro-

duced its Web-based Client Service Platform, which allows each Affiliate to customize

its client service Internet presence. Features include secure access to account and port-

folio information.  Affiliates that provide such information through our platform will
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E S S E X  I N V E S T M E N T  M A N A G E M E N T  C O M PA N Y,  L L C

• Based in Boston, Founded in 1976
• Seven Growth Equity Products
• Institutional, High Net Worth and Private Partnerships
• $11 Billion in Assets Under Management

Investment Style: Aggressive Growth Equity
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employ leading-edge technology and save money and time by customizing our offering

rather than developing their own. AMG also recently introduced its Affiliate Intranet as

a forum for identifying and promoting best practices and enhancing communications

among Affiliates. In addition, many Affiliates now rely upon AMG for help with account-

ing, taxes or other back-office functions. Ultimately, the goal is to provide Affiliates with

an array of exciting, cost-effective tools to enhance their growth and to form a strong

partnership in order to take advantage of new opportunities.  

Strategy for New Investments — AMG seeks continued growth through accretive

investments in new Affiliates selected from among the best mid-sized asset management

firms.  There is a large universe of firms with assets under management between $500

million and $15 billion – more than 1,300 in the United States, Canada and the United

Kingdom alone – and AMG is actively identifying and building relationships with the

most promising among them. AMG believes that high quality mid-sized firms with 

per
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a focused investment discipline, strong track record and entrepreneurial commitment 

to growth provide extremely attractive investment opportunities.  

AMG invests in its Affiliates using a proven structure that is tailored to the particular

goals of each firm, its principals and their clients. AMG generally purchases between

51% and 70% of the equity of a firm, and its managers hold the remaining interest.

Typically, as a result of an investment by AMG, an Affiliate’s equity is more broadly 

distributed among the management partners, providing both senior and junior managers

the motivation to increase the value of their equity through ongoing superior investment

performance and client service.

In contrast to the outright acquisition of an investment firm, AMG’s approach, by 

preserving equity incentives for Affiliate management, aligns the long-term interests 

of the new Affiliate, its clients and AMG. This approach also provides a mechanism

formance



R O R E R  A S S E T  M A N A G E M E N T,  L L C

whereby Affiliate managers can individually realize the value of their retained equity and

subsequent generations of management can obtain equity in the firm.  Finally, in order

to maintain the unique culture of the firm, managers retain autonomy over their opera-

tions through the use of a customized revenue sharing agreement. As a result, clients

benefit from a smooth transition with uninterrupted focus on investment performance

and client service, while AMG and its management partners benefit from the continued

growth of the firm.

growth
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• Based in Philadelphia, Founded in 1978
• Large and Mid-Cap Value Products
• High Net Worth and Institutional
• Participates in 40 Brokerage Distribution Programs
• $12 Billion in Assets Under Management

Investment Style: Relative Value Equity

R O R E R
ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC



F R O N T I E R  C A P I TA L  M A N A G E M E N T  C O M PA N Y,  L L C

AMG’s innovative approach is most attractive to principals of successful mid-sized firms

who believe they can produce future growth and, therefore, seek to retain direct equity

while implementing a succession plan. These principals – often the founders of their

firms – choose AMG as their preferred partner because its business model preserves 

the autonomy and unique investment culture that makes their firms successful. The 

AMG model ensures continuity of management, offers principals a degree of liquidity

and provides incentives for future generations of managers.  Many principals of mid-

sized firms also recognize the benefits of being affiliated with a larger organization that

offers the range of strategic and operating support that AMG can provide.

Financial Strength — AMG’s strong recurring cash flow is an important source of 

its earnings growth. The Company’s structure allows its share of the cash flow from

Affiliates to be used to finance new investments, repurchase stock or repay debt, as

appropriate.  AMG seeks to invest in Affiliates on terms that are accretive to Cash EPS.
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• Based in Boston, Founded in 1980
• Ten Investment Products
• Institutional, High Net Worth and Private Partnerships
• $5 Billion in Assets Under Management

Investment Style: “Growth at a Reasonable Price” Equity



T H E  M A N A G E R S  F U N D S  L L C

(Cash EPS is the Company’s reported EPS figure plus the non-cash charges for depre-

ciation and amortization of intangible assets which arise from the use of the purchase

method of accounting. The Company considers Cash EPS to be the most meaningful

indicator of growth in shareholder value.) Because the addition of incremental new

Affiliates has almost no impact on AMG’s fixed expenses, the corresponding revenue

increase can add immediately to cash flow.

AMG’s efficient balance sheet management is an important element of its financial

strength.  With a credit facility of up to $400 million, the Company maintains ample

capacity to fund new investments while enhancing its return on equity with the use of

moderate financial leverage. The diversity of cash flow from Affiliates limits AMG’s 

exposure to any single investment style or market sector and helps the Company obtain

financing on attractive terms. 
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• Based in Norwalk, Connecticut, Founded in 1983
• Uses “Manager of Managers” Approach with Sub-Advisers
• Family of 16 No-Load Mutual Funds
• Achieved Nearly 40% Growth from Net Client Cash Flows in 2000
• Platform for “Managers AMG Funds” Sub-Advised by AMG Affiliates
• $4 Billion in Assets Under Management

Investment Style: Growth and Value Equity, International Equity and Fixed Income

THE MANAGERS FUNDS



AMGAffiliates
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Affiliates

The Burridge Group LLC
is composed of two 
divisions:  Burridge
Growth Partners, located
in Chicago, and Sound
Capital Partners, located
in Seattle.  The Burridge
division invests in compa-
nies with superior pro-
jected earnings growth
and utilizes proven valua-
tion disciplines.  The
Sound division integrates
top-down economic
analysis with fundamental
research-driven security
selection.  Investment
decisions are based on
disciplined, fundamental
company analysis.

Burridge

• Growth Equity

• Corporate, Taft-Hartley  
and public pension
plans

• Foundations and
endowments

• Individuals
• Wrap accounts

Chicago, Illinois and
Seattle, Washington

December 1996

Founded in 1988 by
Robert C. Davis and 
Jack R. Hamilton, Davis
Hamilton Jackson &
Associates, L.P. employs
a research-driven, 
quantitative approach 
in its stock selection
process and follows a
well-defined sell disci-
pline.  In its fixed income
investments, the firm
seeks high current
return and low overall
volatility.

• Growth Equity
• Fixed Income
• Balanced

• Corporate accounts and
retirement plans

• Public and Taft-Hartley
funds

• Foundations and 
endowments

• Mutual fund sub-adviser

Davis Hamilton
Jackson

Investment 
Style

Overview

Client Type

Location

Date of AMG’s
Investment

Houston, Texas

December 1998

Founded in 1976 by
Joseph C. McNay, Essex
Investment Management
Company, LLC employs
fundamental research
combined with active
portfolio management.
The Essex investment
philosophy is based on
the principle that a 
company’s management
team, business model,
earnings growth and
profitability will drive its
future price performance.
Identifying “franchise
opportunities,” Essex
believes, will help
achieve superior invest-
ment returns.

• Growth Equity
• Fixed Income
• Balanced
• U.S. Hedge

• Corporate accounts
• Public and Taft-Hartley

funds
• Foundations and 

endowments
• Mutual fund sub-adviser
• Domestic and offshore

private partnerships

Essex

Boston, Massachusetts

March 1998
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Founded in 1980,
Frontier Capital
Management Company,
LLC’s highly disciplined
stock selection process
is driven by intensive
internal research that
targets companies with
prospects for above-
average earnings
growth over extended
time periods.  The basic
premise of the Frontier
investment philosophy is
that growth must be
purchased at a reason-
able price.

Frontier

• Growth Equity
• Balanced
• Long/Short

• Public and private 
pension and profit
sharing plans

• Foundations and
endowments

• Taft-Hartley accounts
• Domestic and offshore

private partnerships
• High net worth 

individuals

Boston, Massachusetts

January 2000

First Quadrant, L.P. 
specializes in asset 
allocation, equity style
management and option
overlays on a global
basis.  Employing a 
highly disciplined 
quantitative methodology
to guide its investment
strategy, First Quadrant
seeks to add value 
by assessing relative
valuations across major
segments of the portfo-
lio:  among asset 
classes, across global
markets, among equity
styles and in currency
allocation.

• Tactical Asset Allocation
• Equity
• Quantitative
• Currency and Options

• Domestic and interna-
tional corporate and
public pension plans

• Foundations and
endowments

• Domestic and offshore
private partnerships

• Japanese joint 
venture distribution
arrangement

First Quadrant

Pasadena, California
and London, England

March 1996

Founded in 1979,
GeoCapital, LLC invests
in companies that create
and market new tech-
nologies and services,
and in “special situation”
companies with under-
valued or unrecognized
assets or earnings.  The
firm believes that the
combination of these
two types of investments
in a single portfolio 
can lessen the market
risks, while providing 
the superior returns of
investing in small 
companies.

• Growth Equity
• Special Situations

• Corporations
• Retirement programs
• Foundations
• High net worth 

individuals
• Private partnerships

GeoCapital

New York, New York

September 1997

Founded in 1932, 
Gofen and Glossberg,
L.L.C. provides highly
customized investment
advice. The firm empha-
sizes fundamental 
security analysis and
seeks to generate 
superior returns over a
multi-year period by
owning high-quality,
growing companies with 
distinctive franchises.

• Customized Portfolios
• Equity
• Fixed Income

• Individuals and trusts
• Corporations
• Employee benefit plans
• Foundations and 

endowments
• Banks and insurance

companies

Gofen and
Glossberg

Chicago, Illinois

May 1997
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The Managers Funds
LLC is the adviser to 
two families of no-load
mutual funds, The
Managers Funds and
Managers AMG Funds.
The firm selects 
sub-advisers for The
Managers Funds from
the universe of institu-
tional investment
managers.  The
Managers AMG Funds
are sub-advised by
AMG’s Affiliates.

Managers

• Equity
• Fixed Income

• Mutual Funds

Norwalk, Connecticut

April 1999

Founded in 1961, 
J.M. Hartwell Limited
Partnership employs a
fundamental, bottom-up
approach to investing 
in large- and small-
capitalization growth
companies. The firm
uses a rigorous and 
disciplined stock selec-
tion process to identify
companies with strong
business and financial
characteristics. The
portfolio style is one of
long-term investing.

• Growth Equity
• Balanced

• Foundations
• High net worth 

individuals
• Corporate accounts
• Wrap accounts

Hartwell

New York, New York

May 1994

Paradigm Asset
Management Company,
L.L.C. combines active
management insights
with quantitative tools
for risk control.  It begins
by identifying a set 
of superior active 
managers in each style.  
The process then takes
the aggregate portfolios
of these superior
investors and, using a
sophisticated optimizer,
arrives at a smaller 
portfolio of stocks with
identical risk and return
characteristics.

• Quantitative Equity

• Institutions

Paradigm

New York, New York

May 1995

A recognized leader in
quantitatively-based
investment management
strategies, Renaissance
Investment Management
utilizes disciplined 
quantitative techniques
in conjunction with tradi-
tional, growth-biased
fundamental analysis to
identify investment
opportunities within and
among asset classes.

• Growth Equity
• Tactical Asset Allocation
• Fixed Income
• Balanced

• Corporations
• Foundations and 

endowments
• Taft-Hartley funds
• High net worth 

individuals
• Wrap accounts

Renaissance

Cincinnati, Ohio

November 1995
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Skyline Asset
Management, L.P. uses
a bottom-up investment
philosophy that is 
supported by funda-
mental in-house
research to provide
clients with a distinct
style of small-cap 
value investment.

Skyline

• Value Equity

• Mutual funds
• Foundations and

endowments
• Corporate pension and

profit sharing plans
• Individuals, families

and trusts

Chicago, Illinois

August 1995

Established in 1978,
Rorer Asset Manage-
ment, LLC employs a
highly disciplined 
relative value investment
process pioneered by 
its founder, Edward C.
Rorer, to reduce per-
formance volatility while
seeking excellent risk-
adjusted returns across
investment cycles.

• Value Equity
• Fixed Income
• Balanced

• Individuals, estates
and trusts

• Corporations
• Pension and profit

sharing plans
• Charitable institutions
• Taft-Hartley funds
• Wrap accounts

Rorer

Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania

January 1999

Systematic Financial
Management, L.P.
(“SFM”) employs a
research-driven, 
team-based approach in 
portfolio management,
utilizing extensive 
qualitative fundamental
analysis and innovative
quantitative techniques.
SFM invests in under-
valued companies with
excellent valuations,
strong cash flow and
earnings characteristics,
and specific catalysts in
place that SFM believes
will increase investors’
value.

• Value Equity

• Corporate and public
retirement plans

• Foundations and 
endowments

• Taft-Hartley retirement
plans

• Individuals, families 
and trusts

• Wrap accounts

Systematic

Teaneck, New Jersey

May 1995

Founded in 1920,
Tweedy, Browne
Company LLC employs a
value-oriented invest-
ment approach advocat-
ed by Benjamin Graham
to investing in global and
domestic equities.  The
firm seeks to invest in
companies trading at a
substantial discount to
their true business value
while emphasizing a
long-term, low-turnover
strategy grounded in
individual stock selec-
tion.  Tweedy, Browne
has a research office in
London.

• Value Equity

• Institutions
• Individuals
• Private partnerships
• Offshore funds
• Mutual funds

Tweedy, Browne

New York, New York
and London, England

October 1997
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Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this Annual Report and in our future filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, in our press releases
and in oral statements made with the approval of an authorized
officer, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to,”
“will continue,” “is anticipated,” “believes,” “estimate,” “project”
or similar expressions are intended to identify “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga-
tion Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are subject to certain
risks and uncertainties, including those discussed under the caption
“Business —Cautionary Statements,” which are set forth in our
2000 Annual Report on Form 10-K, that could cause actual results
to differ materially from historical earnings and those presently
anticipated or projected. We wish to caution readers not to place
undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date made. We wish to advise readers that the
factors under the caption “Business —Cautionary Statements” in
the 2000 Annual Report on Form 10-K could affect our financial
performance and could cause our actual results for future periods to
differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with
respect to future periods in any current statements.

OVERVIEW

We buy and hold equity interests in mid-sized investment
management firms (our “Affiliates”) and currently derive
all of our revenues from those firms. We hold investments
in 15 Affiliates that in aggregate managed $77.5 billion in
assets at December 31, 2000. Our most recent investment
was in Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC in
January 2000.

We have a revenue sharing arrangement with each of our
Affiliates which allocates a specified percentage of revenues,
typically 50 – 70%, for use by management of that Affiliate in
paying operating expenses, including salaries and bonuses,
which we refer to as the “Operating Allocation.” The
remaining portion of revenues of each such Affiliate, typi-
cally 30 – 50%, is referred to as the “Owners’ Allocation,”
and is allocated to the owners of that Affiliate (including
AMG), generally in proportion to their ownership of the
Affiliate. In certain cases our profit distribution is paid to us
in the form of a guaranteed payment for the use of our capi-
tal or a license fee, which in each case is paid from the Own-
ers’ Allocation. One of the purposes of our revenue sharing
arrangements is to provide ongoing incentives for the man-
agers of these Affiliates by allowing them:

• to participate in the growth of their firm’s revenues, which
may increase their compensation from the Operating
Allocation, and profit distributions from the Owners’
Allocation; and

• to control operating expenses, thereby increasing the por-
tion of the Operating Allocation which is available for
growth initiatives and compensation.

Under the revenue sharing arrangements, the managers of
our Affiliates have incentives both to increase revenues of the
Affiliate (thereby increasing the Operating Allocation and
their share of the Owners’ Allocation) and to control
expenses of the Affiliate (thereby increasing the excess Oper-
ating Allocation).

The revenue sharing arrangements allow us to participate in
the revenue growth of our Affiliates because we receive a por-
tion of the additional revenue as our share of the Owners’
Allocation. However, we participate in that growth to a lesser
extent than the managers of our Affiliates, because we do not
share in the growth of the Operating Allocation.

Under the organizational documents of the Affiliates, the
allocations and distributions of cash to us generally take pri-
ority over the allocations and distributions to the other own-
ers of the Affiliates. This further protects us if there are any
expenses in excess of the Operating Allocation of an Affiliate.
Thus, if an Affiliate’s expenses exceed its Operating Alloca-
tion, the excess expenses first reduce the portion of the Own-
ers’ Allocation allocated to the Affiliate’s management
owners, until that portion is eliminated, and then reduce the
portion allocated to us. Any such reduction in our portion of
the Owners’ Allocation is required to be paid back to us out
of future Affiliate management Owners’ Allocation. Unlike
all other Affiliates, The Managers Funds LLC is not subject
to a revenue sharing arrangement since we own substantially
all of the firm. As a result, we participate fully in any increase
or decrease in the revenues or expenses of Managers.

The portion of our Affiliates’ revenues which is included in
their Operating Allocation and retained by them to pay
salaries, bonuses and other operating expenses, as well as the
portion of our Affiliates’ revenues which are included in their
Owners’ Allocation and distributed to us and the other own-
ers of the Affiliates, are included as “revenues” in our Con-
solidated Statements of Operations. The expenses of our
Affiliates which are paid out of the Operating Allocation, as
well as our holding company expenses which we pay out of
the amounts of the Owners’ Allocation which we receive
from the Affiliates, are both included in “operating expenses”
on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. The portion
of our Affiliates’ revenues which is allocated to owners of
the Affiliates other than us through their share of Owners’
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Allocation is included in “minority interest” on our Consol-
idated Statements of Operations.

Our revenues are generally derived from the provision of
investment management services for fees by our Affiliates.
Investment management fees (or “asset-based fees”) are usu-
ally determined as a percentage fee charged on periodic
values of a client’s assets under management. Certain of the
Affiliates bill advisory fees for all or a portion of their clients
based upon assets under management valued at the begin-
ning of a billing period (“in advance”). Other Affiliates bill
advisory fees for all or a portion of their clients based upon
assets under management valued at the end of the billing
period (“in arrears”), while mutual fund clients are billed
based upon daily assets. Advisory fees billed in advance will
not reflect subsequent changes in the market value of assets
under management for that period. Conversely, advisory fees
billed in arrears will reflect changes in the market value of
assets under management for that period. In addition, several
of the Affiliates charge performance-based fees to certain of
their clients; these performance-based fees result in pay-
ments to the applicable Affiliate based on levels of investment
performance achieved. While the Affiliates bill perfor-
mance-based fees at various times throughout the year, the
greatest portion of these fees have historically been billed in
the fourth quarter in any given year. All references to “assets
under management” include assets directly managed as well
as assets underlying overlay strategies (which we call “over-
lay assets”), which employ futures, options or other deriva-
tive securities to achieve a particular investment objective.

Our level of profitability will depend on a variety of factors
including principally:

• the level of Affiliate revenues, which is dependent on the
ability of our existing and future Affiliates to maintain or
increase assets under management by maintaining their
existing investment advisory relationships and fee struc-
tures, marketing their services successfully to new clients
and obtaining favorable investment results;

• a variety of factors affecting the securities markets gen-
erally, which could potentially result in considerable
increases or decreases in the assets under management
at our Affiliates;

• the receipt of Owners’ Allocation, which is dependent on
the ability of our existing and future Affiliates to maintain
certain levels of operating profit margins;

• the availability and cost of the capital with which we finance
our existing and new investments;

• our success in attracting new investments and the terms
upon which such transactions are completed;

• the level of intangible assets and the associated amortiza-
tion expense resulting from our investments;

• the level of expenses incurred for holding company opera-
tions, including compensation for its employees; and

• the level of taxation to which we are subject.

In addition, our profitability will depend upon fees paid on
the basis of investment performance at certain Affiliates.
Fees based on investment performance are inherently
dependent on investment results, and therefore may vary
substantially from year to year. In particular, performance-
based fees were of an unusual magnitude in 1998 and 1999,
but were not as significant in 2000, and may not recur even
to the same magnitude as 2000 in future years, if at all. In
addition, while the performance-based fee contracts of our
Affiliates apply to investment management services in a
range of investment management styles and securities mar-
ket sectors, such contracts may be concentrated in certain
styles and sectors. For example, in 1999 we benefited from a
concentration of such products in technology sectors which
performed well in that year but have declined significantly
since that time. To the extent such contracts are concentrated
within styles or sectors, they are subject to the continuing
impact of fluctuating securities prices in such styles and
sectors as well as the performance of the relevant Affiliates.

As described above, our revenue is largely from fees based
upon our Affiliates’ assets under management, and as of the
end of 2000 in excess of 90% of that revenue was derived
from the equity asset class. As a result, our revenue is
impacted by the performance of the equity markets as a
whole. Through the end of the first quarter of 2001, market
indices such as the Dow Jones Industrial Average and the
NASDAQ Composite Index had declined significantly. As
with many financial services firms, our results in the first
quarter of 2001 will be affected adversely by these broad mar-
ket declines, and our results in the future would be affected
adversely by further market declines.
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Our investments have been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting under which goodwill is recorded for
the excess of the purchase price for the acquisition of inter-
ests in Affiliates over the fair value of the net assets acquired,
including acquired client relationships. As a result of our
investments, intangible assets, consisting of acquired client
relationships and goodwill, constitute a substantial percent-
age of our consolidated assets. As of December 31, 2000, our
total assets were approximately $793.7 million, of which
approximately $199.4 million consisted of acquired client
relationships and $444.1 million consisted of goodwill.

The amortization period for intangible assets for each invest-
ment is assessed individually, with amortization periods for
our investments to date ranging from seven to 28 years in the
case of acquired client relationships and 15 to 35 years in the
case of goodwill. In determining the amortization period for
intangible assets acquired, we consider a number of factors
including:

• the firm’s historical and potential future operating perfor-
mance and rate of attrition among clients;

• the stability and longevity of existing client relationships;
• the firm’s recent, as well as long-term, investment

performance;
• the characteristics of the firm’s products and investment

styles;
• the stability and depth of the firm’s management team; and
• the firm’s history and perceived franchise or brand value.

We regularly perform an evaluation of intangible assets on an
investment-by-investment basis to determine whether there
has been any impairment in their carrying value or their use-
ful lives. If impairment is indicated, then the carrying
amount of intangible assets, including goodwill, will be
reduced to their fair values.

As a result of our investments, amortization expense, which
is a non-cash charge, has historically represented a signifi-
cant percentage of our expenses. In February 2001, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board released a proposed
accounting standard that, if adopted, would change the
accounting for goodwill. If the standard is adopted, goodwill
would no longer be amortized. Since goodwill amortization
represented 60% of total intangible amortization expense in
the year ended December 31, 2000, under similar circum-
stances in the future our net income and earnings per share
may be higher for this reason. There can be no assurance that
this standard will be adopted in its proposed form, or at all.

Even if the pending accounting changes occur, intangible
amortization (related to acquired client relationships) will
continue to be a material component of our operating
expenses. Accordingly, we believe it is significant to distin-
guish amortization expense and other non-cash expenses
(principally depreciation) from other operating expenses
since these expenses do not require the use of cash. We have
provided additional supplemental information in this report
for “cash” related earnings as an addition to, but not a sub-
stitute, for measures of financial performance under gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. Our additional measures
of “cash” related earnings are:

• Cash Net Income (net income plus depreciation and amor-
tization), which we believe is useful to investors as an indi-
cator of funds available to the Company, which may be used
to make new investments, repay debt obligations, repur-
chase shares of Common Stock or pay dividends on our
Common Stock (although the Company has no current
plans to pay dividends);

• EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes,
depreciation and amortization), which we believe is useful
to investors as an indicator of our ability to service debt,
make new investments and meet working capital require-
ments; and

• EBITDA Contribution (EBITDA plus our holding com-
pany operating expenses), which we believe is useful to
investors as an indicator of funds available from our Affili-
ates’ operations to service debt, make new investments and
meet working capital requirements.

Assets under management were $77.5 billion at December
31, 2000 versus $82.0 billion at December 31, 1999. The
decrease in assets under management during the year
resulted from the net loss of low-fee overlay assets of $7.4 bil-
lion, principally from the loss of two passive overlay asset
accounts. Negative investment performance of $2.6 billion
also contributed to the decrease. These decreases were par-
tially offset by our new investments ($5.2 billion of assets
under management at the time of investment), including our
investment in Frontier Capital Management Company,
LLC, and positive net client cash flows of directly managed
assets of $238.7 million.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2000 as Compared to 
Year Ended December 31, 1999
We had net income of $56.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000 compared to net income of $72.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 1999. The decrease in net
income resulted primarily from lower performance-based
fees, partially offset by internal growth of existing Affiliates
and our investment in Frontier.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000 were
$458.7 million, a decrease of $60.0 million from the year
ended December 31, 1999. Revenues (excluding performance-
based fees) grew 38% for the year ended December 31, 2000
as compared to the year ended December 31, 1999. The
decrease in total revenues resulted from an unusual magnitude
of performance-based fees realized in 1999 which did not recur
at this level in 2000. Revenues from performance-based fees
represented approximately 5% of total revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2000 compared to approximately 39% of
total revenues for the year ended December 31, 1999. The
decrease in performance-based fees in 2000 when compared
to 1999 was partially offset by the growth in asset-based fees at
our existing Affiliates and from revenues from our investment
in Frontier.

Total operating expenses decreased by $21.8 million to $284.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2000 over the year
ended December 31, 1999. Compensation and related
expenses decreased by $43.1 million to $174.7 million. Amor-
tization of intangible assets increased by $4.2 million to $26.4
million, selling, general and administrative expenses increased
by $15.0 million to $68.2 million, and other operating expenses
increased by $1.4 million to $10.3 million. The decrease in
operating expenses was principally a result of the net decrease
in Affiliates’ Operating Allocation due to the decrease in per-
formance-based fees, partially offset by the increase in mutual
fund distribution expenses resulting from the acquisition of
The Managers Funds LLC in 1999 and the subsequent growth
in Managers’ revenues and related distribution expenses in
2000. The increase in amortization expense was principally
the result of our investment in Frontier.

Investment and other income decreased by $12.0 million to
$2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 over the
year ended December 31, 1999, as a result of the significant
levels of income recognized from our interests in Affiliate
investment partnerships in 1999 that did not recur in 2000.

Minority interest decreased by $20.9 million to $65.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000 over the year ended
December 31, 1999, primarily as a result of the decrease in
performance-based fees earned in 2000, partially offset by the
growth in asset-based fees and our investment in Frontier.

Interest expense increased by $4.0 million to $15.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000 over the year ended
December 31, 1999. The increase in interest expense was the
result of an increase in the weighted average debt outstand-
ing under our credit facility and increases in LIBOR interest
rates. The increase in weighted average debt outstanding was
attributable to our investment in Frontier and the repurchase
of Common Stock, partially offset by debt repayments from
cash flows from operations.

Income tax expense was $39.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000 compared to $56.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 1999. The change in income tax expense
was related principally to the decrease in income before taxes
in the year ended December 31, 2000, as well as a decrease in
our effective tax rate from 44% to 41%. The effective tax rate
decreased in 2000 as a result of stockholder approval of an
incentive compensation plan which increased allowable
compensation deductions, among other initiatives.

EBITDA decreased by $24.4 million to $142.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000 over the year ended
December 31, 1999, resulting from the decrease in perfor-
mance-based fees, partially offset by the growth in asset-
based fees at our existing Affiliates and our investment
in Frontier.

Cash Net Income decreased by $10.6 million to $87.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000 over the year ended
December 31, 1999 as a result of the factors affecting net
income as described above, excluding the changes in depre-
ciation and amortization during the year.
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Year Ended December 31, 1999 as Compared to
Year Ended December 31, 1998
We had net income of $72.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 1999 compared to net income of $25.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 1998. The increase in net
income resulted primarily from a substantial increase in per-
formance-based fees earned by several Affiliates (principally
Essex Investment Management Company, LLC), as well as
growth in asset-based fees resulting from positive investment
performance. In addition, the investments we made in 1998
and 1999 contributed significantly to our growth. We
invested in Essex in March 1998, Davis Hamilton Jackson &
Associates, L.P. in December 1998, Rorer Asset Management,
LLC in January 1999 and Managers in April 1999 and
included their results from the respective dates of investment.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 1999 were
$518.7 million, an increase of $280.2 million over the year
ended December 31, 1998. The increase in revenues resulted
from a substantial increase in performance-based fees earned
by several Affiliates, as well as growth in asset-based fees
resulting from positive investment performance and invest-
ments in new Affiliates. Revenues from performance-based
fees increased from approximately 18% of total revenues for
the year ended December 31, 1998 to approximately 39% of
total revenues for the year ended December 31, 1999. The
increase in performance-based fees was primarily the result
of performance-based fee contracts in place at Essex.

Total operating expenses increased by $160.4 million to
$306.1 million for the year ended December 31, 1999 over
the year ended December 31, 1998. Compensation and
related expenses increased by $130.1 million to $217.8 mil-
lion, amortization of intangible assets increased by $4.8 mil-
lion to $22.2 million, selling, general and administrative
expenses increased by $21.6 million to $53.3 million, and
other operating expenses increased by $2.6 million to $8.9
million. The growth in operating expenses was principally a
result of an increase in Affiliates’ Operating Allocation due
to a substantial increase in performance-based fees earned
by several Affiliates, growth in asset-based fees resulting
from positive investment performance and investments in
new Affiliates.

Investment and other income increased by $12.0 million to
$14.2 million for the year ended December 31, 1999 over the
year ended December 31, 1998, substantially from the signif-
icant levels of income recognized from our interests in Affil-
iate investment partnerships in 1999.

Minority interest increased by $47.4 million to $86.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 1999 over the year ended
December 31, 1998, primarily as a result of the increase in
Affiliates’ Owners’ Allocation due to a substantial increase in
performance-based fees earned by several Affiliates, growth
in asset-based fees resulting from positive investment per-
formance and investments in new Affiliates.

Interest expense decreased by $1.8 million to $11.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 1999 over the year ended
December 31, 1998. The reduction in interest expense
resulted from repayments of senior bank debt with the net
proceeds from our public offering of Common Stock in
March 1999 and cash flow from ongoing operations, and was
partially offset by borrowings related to new investments. In
addition, interest expense decreased due to the favorable
impact of the public offering on our LIBOR margin as well
as a favorable interest rate environment.

Income tax expense was $56.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 1999 compared to $17.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 1998. The change in income tax
expense was related principally to the increase in income
before taxes in the year ended December 31, 1999.

EBITDA increased by $90.5 million to $166.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 1999 over the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 1998, resulting from a substantial increase in perfor-
mance-based fees earned by several Affiliates, growth in
asset-based fees resulting from positive investment perfor-
mance and investments in new Affiliates.

Cash Net Income increased by $52.6 million to $98.3 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 1999 over the year
ended December 31, 1998 as a result of the factors affecting
net income as described above, excluding the changes in
depreciation and amortization during the year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have met our cash requirements primarily through bor-
rowings from our banks, cash generated by operating activi-
ties and the issuance of equity securities in public
transactions. Our principal uses of cash have been to make
investments, repay indebtedness, pay income taxes, repur-
chase shares, support our and our Affiliates’ operating activ-
ities and for working capital purposes. We expect that our
principal use of funds for the foreseeable future will be for
additional investments, distributions to management owners
of Affiliates, repayments of debt, including interest on
outstanding debt, payment of income taxes, repurchase of
shares, capital expenditures, additional investments in exist-
ing Affiliates, including our purchase of management own-
ers’ retained equity and for working capital purposes.

At December 31, 2000, we had outstanding borrowings of
senior debt under our credit facility of $151 million and the
ability to borrow an additional $179 million. We have the
option, with the consent of our lenders, to increase the facil-
ity by another $70 million to a total of $400 million. Our out-
standing senior debt balance as of December 31, 2000
decreased by 13% as compared to December 31, 1999 as a
result of repayments from cash flow from ongoing opera-
tions, partially offset by borrowings for our investment in
Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC in January
2000 and repurchases of shares of our Common Stock. Dur-
ing 2000, we began a cash management program with our
Affiliates that enabled us to access their excess cash through
intercompany loans. At December 31, 2000, we had $52.8
million in such loans. Because these loans are intercompany
balances, they are eliminated for accounting purposes and
are not reflected on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Our borrowings under the credit facility are collateralized by
pledges of all of our interests in Affiliates (including all inter-
ests which are directly held by us, as well as all interests which
are indirectly held by us through wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries), which interests represent substantially all of our
assets. Our credit facility contains a number of negative
covenants, including those which generally prevent us and
our Affiliates from: (i) incurring additional indebtedness
(other than subordinated indebtedness), (ii) creating any
liens or encumbrances on material assets (with certain enu-
merated exceptions), (iii) selling assets outside the ordinary
course of business or making certain fundamental changes
with respect to our businesses, including a restriction on our

ability to transfer interests in any majority owned Affiliate if,
as a result of such transfer, we would own less than 51% of
such firm, and (iv) declaring or paying dividends on our
Common Stock. Our credit facility bears interest at either
LIBOR plus a margin or the Prime Rate plus a margin. We
pay a commitment fee on the daily unused portion of the
facility. In order to partially offset our exposure to changing
interest rates we have entered into interest rate hedging con-
tracts, as discussed below in “Market Risk.” The credit facil-
ity matures during December 2002.

In order to provide the funds necessary for us to continue to
acquire interests in investment management firms, including
in our existing Affiliates upon the sale by our Affiliates’ man-
agement owners of their retained equity to us, it will be nec-
essary for us to incur, from time to time, additional long-term
bank debt and/or issue equity or debt securities, depending
on market and other conditions. There can be no assurance
that such additional financing will be available on terms
acceptable to us, if at all.

Net cash flow from operating activities was $153.7 million,
$89.1 million and $45.4 million for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The increase in net
cash flow from operating activities from 1999 to 2000
resulted principally from the operating cash flows received in
2000 from performance-based fees earned in the fourth
quarter of 1999, and the internal growth of our existing Affil-
iates. The increase in net cash flow from operating activities
from 1998 to 1999 resulted principally from the internal
growth of our existing Affiliates.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $111.7 million,
$112.9 million and $72.7 million for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Of these amounts,
$104.4 million, $103.5 million and $66.6 million, respec-
tively, were used to make investments in Affiliates.

In January 2000, we acquired our ownership interest in
Frontier. In 1999, we acquired our ownership interests in
Rorer and Managers and repaid a note issued in the fourth
quarter of 1998 in connection with our Davis Hamilton
investment. In 1998, we acquired a portion of our ownership
interest in Essex with cash. All of these investments were
financed with borrowings under our credit facility.
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Net cash flow used in financing activities was $64.0 million in
the year ended December 31, 2000 versus net cash flow from
financing activities of $54.0 million and $28.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The
principal sources of cash from financing activities over the last
three years have been borrowings under our credit facility and
the public offering of our Common Stock. The uses of cash
from financing activities during this period were for the
repayment of debt and for the repurchase of Common Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, we repurchased
1,261,800 shares of Common Stock at an average price of
$38.68, with borrowings under our credit facility. The repur-
chases were pursuant to two share repurchase programs
authorized by our Board of Directors in October 1999 and
April 2000. Each program authorized us to repurchase up to
five percent of our issued and outstanding shares of Common
Stock in open market transactions, with the timing of
purchases and the amount of stock purchased determined at
our discretion.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Our revenues are derived primarily from fees that are based
on the values of assets managed. Such values are affected by
changes in the broader financial markets which are, in part,
affected by changing interest rates. We cannot predict the
effects that interest rates or changes in interest rates may
have on either the broader financial markets or our Affiliates’
assets under management and associated fees.

With respect to our debt financing, we are exposed to poten-
tial fluctuations in the amount of interest expense resulting
from changing interest rates. We seek to offset such exposure
in part by entering into interest rate hedging contracts. See
“Market Risk.”

MARKET RISK

We use interest rate hedging contracts to manage market
exposures associated with our variable rate debt by creating
offsetting market exposures. These instruments are not held
for trading purposes. In the normal course of operations,
we also face risks that are either non-financial or non-quan-
tifiable. Such risks principally include country risk, credit
risk and legal risk, and are not represented in the analysis
that follows.

As of December 31, 2000, we were a party, with two major
commercial banks as counterparties, to $185 million notional
amount of interest rate hedging contracts which were linked
to the three-month LIBOR rate. We closed these contracts
in January 2001 in conjunction with the implementation of
the new derivative accounting standard, Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Deriva-
tive Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“FAS 133”).

During February 2001, we became a party, with two major
commercial banks as counterparties, to $50 million notional
amount of interest rate hedging contracts that are linked to
the three-month LIBOR rate. Under these contracts, we
have agreed to exchange the difference between fixed-rate
and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to
the $50 million notional amount. These contracts cap
LIBOR rates on the notional amounts at rates ranging
between 4.95% and 5.14%.

We have performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypo-
thetical 10% adverse movement in the three-month LIBOR
rates, sustained for three months. As of March 23, 2001, this
analysis indicated that this hypothetical movement in three-
month LIBOR rates would have resulted in no loss in earnings.

There can be no assurance that we will continue to maintain
such hedging contracts at their existing levels of coverage or
that the amount of coverage maintained will cover all of our
indebtedness outstanding at any such time. Therefore, there
can be no assurance that the hedging contracts will meet
their overall objective of reducing our interest expense. In
addition, there can be no assurance that we will be successful
in obtaining hedging contracts in the future on our existing
or any new indebtedness.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

In June 1998, the FASB issued FAS 133, which standardizes the
accounting for derivative instruments by requiring that all
derivatives be recognized as assets and liabilities and be mea-
sured at fair value. In June 1999, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities—Deferral of Effective
Date of FASB Statement No. 133—an amendment to FASB
Statement 133” deferred the effective date of FAS 133 to finan-
cial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000.

We adopted the standard on January 1, 2001, and the adop-
tion did not materially impact our consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2001, the FASB released a proposed accounting
standard that, if adopted, would change the accounting for
goodwill. If the standard is adopted, goodwill would no
longer be amortized. Since goodwill represented 60% of
total intangible amortization expense in the year ended
December 31, 2000, under similar circumstances in the
future our net income and earnings per share may be higher
for this reason. There can be no assurance that this standard
will be adopted in its proposed form, or at all.

ECONOMIC AND MARKET CONDITIONS

Prior to the year 2000, the investment management sector
has been one of the fastest growing sectors in the financial
services industry. As one example of this growth, the assets
under management of mutual funds increased at a compound
annual growth rate of 25% from 1995 to the end of 1999, to
a total of $6.8 trillion at the end of 1999, according to the
Investment Company Institute. In 2000 and in the first quar-
ter of 2001, however, the investment management sector
(like the financial services industry more broadly) experi-
enced extraordinary volatility, as equity markets declined
significantly.

Domestic and foreign economic conditions and general
trends in business and finance, among other factors, affect
the financial markets and businesses operating in the securi-
ties industry. We cannot guarantee that broader market per-
formance will be favorable in the future. A continued decline
in the financial markets or a lack of sustained growth may
result in a corresponding decline in our Affiliates’ perfor-
mance and may cause our Affiliates to experience declining

assets under management and/or fees, which would reduce
cash flow distributable to us.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

First Quadrant Limited, a sister company to First Quadrant,
L.P., is organized and headquartered in London, England.
Tweedy, Browne Company LLC, based in New York, also
maintains a research office in London. In the future, we may
seek to invest in other investment management firms which
are located and/or conduct a significant part of their opera-
tions outside of the United States. There are certain risks
inherent in doing business internationally, such as changes in
applicable laws and regulatory requirements, difficulties in
staffing and managing foreign operations, longer payment
cycles, difficulties in collecting investment advisory fees
receivable, political instability, fluctuations in currency
exchange rates, expatriation controls and potential adverse
tax consequences. There can be no assurance that one or
more of such factors will not have a material adverse effect on
First Quadrant Limited or other non-U.S. investment man-
agement firms in which we may invest in the future and, con-
sequently, on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

INFLATION

We do not believe that inflation or changing prices have had
a material impact on our results of operations.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

For quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk
affecting us, see “Market Risk.”
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Set forth below are selected financial data for the last five years. This data should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified
in its entirety by reference to, the financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except as indicated and per share data) 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

Statement of Operations Data
Revenues $ 50,384 $ 95,287 $238,494 $518,726 $458,708
Net income (loss) (2,372) (8,368) 25,551 72,188 56,656
Earnings per share—diluted (5.49) (1.02) 1.33 3.18 2.49

Average shares outstanding—diluted(1) 432 8,236 19,223 22,693 22,749

Other Financial Data
Assets under management 

(at period end, in millions) $ 19,051 $ 45,673 $ 57,731 $ 82,041 $ 77,523
EBITDA(2) 10,524 20,044 76,312 166,801 142,378
Cash Net Income(3) 7,596 10,201 45,675 98,318 87,676
Cash earnings per share—diluted(4) 17.58 1.24 2.38 4.33 3.85

Balance Sheet Data
Intangible assets(5) $ 71,472 $392,573 $490,949 $571,881 $643,470
Total assets 101,335 456,990 605,334 909,073 793,730
Senior debt 33,400 159,500 212,500 174,500 151,000
Stockholders’ equity(1) 36,989 259,740 313,655 477,986 493,910

(1) In connection with our initial public offering in November 1997, we raised $189 million from the sale of 8.7 million shares of Common Stock and 8.0 million
shares of preferred stock converted to shares of Common Stock. In March 1999, we raised $102.3 million from our sale of an additional 4.0 million shares of
Common Stock.

(2) EBITDA represents earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization and extraordinary items. We believe EBITDA may be use-
ful to investors as an indicator of our ability to service debt, make new investments and meet working capital requirements. EBITDA is not a measure of finan-
cial performance under generally accepted accounting principles and should not be considered an alternative to net income as a measure of operating
performance or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. EBITDA, as calculated by us, may not be consistent with computations of
EBITDA by other companies.

(3) Cash Net Income represents net income plus depreciation and amortization and extraordinary items. We believe that this measure may be useful to investors
as another indicator of funds available to the Company, which may be used to make new investments, repay debt obligations, repurchase shares of Common
Stock or pay dividends on Common Stock. Cash Net Income is not a measure of financial performance under generally accepted accounting principles and
should not be considered an alternative to net income as a measure of operating performance or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liq-
uidity. Cash Net Income, as calculated by us, may not be consistent with computations of Cash Net Income by other companies. Cash Net Income as defined
herein has historically been referred to by us as “EBITDA as Adjusted.”

(4) Cash earnings per share represents Cash Net Income divided by average shares outstanding. Cash earnings per share for 1996 and 1997 shown above are before
extraordinary items related to the replacement of AMG’s previous credit facilities with new facilities.

(5) Intangible assets have increased with each new investment in an Affiliate. From our inception through December 31, 2000, we made investments in fifteen
Affiliates.

Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and
cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. at December 31,
1999 and 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of Amer-
ica, which require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assess-
ing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Boston, Massachusetts
March 28, 2001
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December 31,
(in thousands) 1999 2000

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 53,879 $ 31,612
Investment advisory fees receivable 239,383 66,126
Other current assets 6,705 15,448

Total current assets 299,967 113,186
Fixed assets, net 12,321 15,346
Equity investment in Affiliate 1,563 1,816
Acquired client relationships, net of accumulated amortization 

of $23,202 in 1999 and $33,775 in 2000 186,499 199,354
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $36,103 

in 1999 and $51,939 in 2000 385,382 444,116
Other assets 23,341 19,912

Total assets $909,073 $793,730

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $170,299 $ 86,800

Total current liabilities 170,299 86,800
Senior bank debt 174,500 151,000
Deferred taxes 25,346 31,907
Other long-term liabilities 1,346 2,636
Subordinated debt 800 800

Total liabilities 372,291 273,143
Minority interest 58,796 26,677
Commitments and contingencies — —
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock 235 235
Additional paid-in capital 405,883 407,057
Accumulated other comprehensive income (55) (342)
Retained earnings 83,857 140,513

489,920 547,463
Less treasury shares (11,934) (53,553)

Total stockholders’ equity 477,986 493,910

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $909,073 $793,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except share and per share data) 1998 1999 2000

Revenues $238,494 $518,726 $458,708
Operating expenses:

Compensation and related expenses 87,669 217,780 174,710
Amortization of intangible assets 17,417 22,229 26,409
Depreciation and other amortization 2,707 3,901 4,611
Selling, general and administrative 31,643 53,251 68,216
Other operating expenses 6,278 8,906 10,327

145,714 306,067 284,273

Operating income 92,780 212,659 174,435
Non-operating (income) and expenses: 

Investment and other income (2,251) (14,237) (2,264)
Interest expense 13,603 11,764 15,750

11,352 (2,473) 13,486
Income before minority interest and income taxes 81,428 215,132 160,949
Minority interest (38,843) (86,225) (65,341)

Income before income taxes 42,585 128,907 95,608
Income taxes 17,034 56,719 38,952

Net income $ 25,551 $ 72,188 $ 56,656

Earnings per share—basic $1.45 $3.25 $2.54

Earnings per share—diluted $1.33 $3.18 $2.49

Average shares outstanding—basic 17,582,900 22,180,112 22,307,476
Average shares outstanding—diluted 19,222,831 22,693,016 22,748,595

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 1998 1999 2000

Net income $25,551 $72,188 $56,656
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of taxes 46 (71) (287)

Comprehensive income $25,597 $72,117 $56,369

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 1998 1999 2000

Cash flow from operating activities: 
Net income $ 25,551 $ 72,188 $ 56,656

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flow from 
operating activities:
Amortization of intangible assets 17,417 22,229 26,409
Depreciation and other amortization 2,707 3,901 4,611
Deferred income tax provision 10,410 14,936 6,561

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in investment advisory fees receivable (38,053) (163,262) 182,241
Increase in other current assets (2,766) (1,260) (8,639)
Decrease (increase) in non-current other receivables — (10,779) 5,064
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued expenses and 

other liabilities 22,489 116,518 (87,073)
Increase (decrease) in minority interest 7,669 34,648 (32,119)

Cash flow from operating activities 45,424 89,119 153,711

Cash flow used in investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (4,313) (6,050) (6,235)
Costs of investments, net of cash acquired (66,577) (103,500) (104,438)
Distributions received from Affiliate equity investment 675 550 428
Increase in other assets (750) (486) (699)
Loans to employees (1,700) (3,453) (786)

Cash flow used in investing activities (72,665) (112,939) (111,730)

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities:
Borrowings of senior bank debt 78,800 155,800 193,500
Repayments of senior bank debt (47,800) (171,800) (217,000)
Repayments of notes payable to related parties — (22,000) —
Issuances of equity securities (62) 101,536 8,412
Repurchase of stock (2,612) (9,322) (48,858)
Debt issuance costs (163) (179) (15)

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities 28,163 54,035 (63,961)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash flow 47 (71) (287)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 969 30,144 (22,267)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22,766 23,735 53,879

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 23,735 $ 53,879 $ 31,612

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Interest paid $ 11,780 $ 11,654 $ 17,025
Income taxes paid 3,358 20,576 52,415

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities: 
Stock issued in acquisitions 30,992 — —
Notes issued in acquisitions 22,000 — —
Conversion of convertible stock to common stock — 30,992 —
Common stock received for the exercise of stock options — — 1,027
Capital lease obligations for fixed assets — — 816

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional Treasury
Preferred Common Convertible Preferred Common Convertible Paid-In Retained Treasury Shares

(dollars in thousands) Shares Shares Shares Stock Stock Stock Capital Earnings Shares at Cost

December 31, 1997 — 17,703,617 — $ — $177 $ — $273,475 $ (13,912) — $ —
Issuance of 

common stock — — — — — — (62) — — —
Issuance of 

convertible stock — — 1,750,942 — — 30,992 — — — —
Purchase of 

common stock — — — — — — — — (172,000) (2,612)
Net income — — — — — — — 25,551 — —
Other comprehensive

income — — — — — — — 46 — —

December 31, 1998 — 17,703,617 1,750,942 — 177 30,992 273,413 11,685 (172,000) (2,612)
Issuance of 

common stock — 4,000,938 — — 40 — 101,496 — — —
Conversion of 

convertible stock — 1,750,942 (1,750,942) — 18 (30,992) 30,974 — — —
Purchase of 

common stock — — — — — — — — (346,900) (9,322)
Net income — — — — — — — 72,188 — —
Other comprehensive 

income — — — — — — — (71) — —

December 31, 1999 — 23,455,497 — — 235 — 405,883 83,802 (518,900) (11,934)
Issuance of 

common stock — 63,547 — — — — 1,227 — 328,938 8,266
Purchase of 

common stock — — — — — — (53) — (1,287,401) (49,885)
Net income — — — — — — — 56,656 — —
Other comprehensive 

income — — — — — — — (287) — —

December 31, 2000 — 23,519,044 — $ — $235 $ — $407,057 $140,171 (1,477,363) $(53,553)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Nature of Operations
The principal business activity of Affiliated Managers
Group, Inc. (“AMG” or the “Company”) is to acquire and
hold principally majority equity interests in mid-sized
investment management firms (“Affiliates”). AMG’s Affili-
ates operate in one industry segment, that of providing
investment management services, primarily in the United
States and Europe, to mutual funds, partnerships and insti-
tutional and individual clients.

Affiliates are either organized as limited partnerships, gen-
eral partnerships or limited liability companies. AMG has
contractual arrangements with each Affiliate (other than The
Managers Funds LLC) whereby a percentage of revenues is
allocable to fund Affiliate operating expenses, including
compensation (the Operating Allocation), while the remain-
ing portion of revenues (the Owners’ Allocation) is allocable
to AMG and the other partners or members, generally with
a priority to AMG. Unlike all other Affiliates, Managers is
not subject to a revenue sharing arrangement since AMG
owns substantially all of the firm. As a result, the Company
participates fully in any increase or decrease in the revenues
or expenses of Managers.

Accounting for Investments
These consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of AMG and each Affiliate in which AMG has a
controlling interest. In each such instance, AMG is, directly
or indirectly, the sole general partner (in the case of Affiliates
which are limited partnerships), sole managing general part-
ner (in the case of the Affiliate which is a general partnership)
or sole manager member (in the case of Affiliates which are
limited liability companies). For Affiliate operations consol-
idated into these financial statements, the portion of the
Owners’ Allocation allocated to owners other than AMG is
included in minority interest in the Consolidated Statement
of Operations. Minority interest on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet includes capital and undistributed Owners’
Allocation owned by the owners of consolidated Affiliates.

Investments where AMG or an Affiliate does not hold a
controlling interest are currently accounted for under the
equity method of accounting and AMG’s portion of net
income is included in investment and other income. In the
future, new investments may be accounted for under the cost
method if AMG or the Affiliate owns less than a 20% inter-
est and does not exercise significant influence. Under the
cost method, AMG’s portion of net income is not included in
the Consolidated Statement of Operations and dividends are
recorded when, and if, declared. However, charges are rec-
ognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations if
events or circumstances indicate a permanent impairment of
the carrying value.

All material intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated. All dollar amounts except per share data in
the text and tables herein are stated in thousands unless oth-
erwise indicated. Certain reclassifications have been made to
prior years’ financial statements to conform with the current
year’s presentation.

Segment Reporting
The Company has adopted Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards (FAS) 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information.” FAS 131 superseded
FAS 14, “Financial Reporting for Segments of a Business
Enterprise,” replacing the “industry segment” approach with
the “management” approach. The management approach
designates the internal organization that is used by manage-
ment for making operating decisions and assessing perfor-
mance as the source of the Company’s reportable segments.
FAS 131 also requires disclosures about products and ser-
vices, geographic areas, and major customers. The adoption
of FAS 131 did not affect results of operations or financial
position (see Note 15).

Revenue Recognition
The Company’s consolidated revenues represent advisory
fees billed monthly, quarterly and annually by Affiliates for
managing the assets of clients. Asset-based advisory fees are
recognized monthly as services are rendered and are based
upon a percentage of the market value of client assets man-
aged. Any fees collected in advance are deferred and recog-
nized as income over the period earned. Performance-based
advisory fees are recognized when earned based upon either
the positive difference between the investment returns on a
client’s portfolio compared to a benchmark index or indices,
or an absolute percentage of gain in the client’s account.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equiv-
alents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approxi-
mates market value due to the short-term maturity of these
investments.

Fixed Assets
Equipment and other fixed assets are recorded at cost and
depreciated using the straight-line method over their esti-
mated useful lives ranging from three to five years. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of their esti-
mated useful lives or the term of the lease.

Acquired Client Relationships and Goodwill
The purchase price for the acquisition of interests in Affili-
ates is allocated based on the fair value of assets acquired,
primarily acquired client relationships. In determining the
allocation of purchase price to acquired client relationships,
the Company analyzes the net present value of each acquired
Affiliate’s existing client relationships based on a number
of factors including: the Affiliate’s historical and potential
future operating performance; the Affiliate’s historical and
potential future rates of attrition among existing clients;
the stability and longevity of existing client relationships;
the Affiliate’s recent, as well as long-term, investment
performance; the characteristics of the firm’s products
and investment styles; the stability and depth of the Affili-
ate’s management team and the Affiliate’s history and per-
ceived franchise or brand value. The cost assigned to
acquired client relationships is amortized using the straight-
line method over periods ranging from seven to 28 years.
The expected useful lives of acquired client relationships are
analyzed separately for each acquired Affiliate and deter-
mined based on an analysis of the historical and potential
future attrition rates of each Affiliate’s existing clients, as well
as a consideration of the specific attributes of the business of
each Affiliate.

The excess of purchase price for the acquisition of interests
in Affiliates over the fair value of net assets acquired, includ-
ing acquired client relationships, is classified as goodwill.
Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over
periods ranging from 15 to 35 years. In determining the
amortization period for goodwill, the Company considers a
number of factors including: the firm’s historical and poten-
tial future operating performance; the characteristics of the
firm’s clients, products and investment styles; as well as the
firm’s history and perceived franchise or brand value.

Unamortized intangible assets, including acquired client rela-
tionships and goodwill, are periodically re-evaluated and if
experience subsequent to the acquisition indicates that there
has been an impairment in value, other than temporary
fluctuations, an impairment loss is recognized. Management
evaluates the recoverability of unamortized intangible assets
quarterly for each acquisition using estimates of undiscounted
cash flows factoring in known or expected trends, future
prospects and other relevant information. If impairment is
indicated, the Company measures its loss as the excess of the
carrying value of the intangible assets for each Affiliate over its
fair value determined using valuation models such as dis-
counted cash flows and market comparables. Fair value in such
cases was determined using market comparables based on rev-
enues, cash flow and assets under management. No impair-
ment loss was recorded for any of the three years ended
December 31, 2000.

As further described in Note 9, the Company periodically
purchases additional equity interests in Affiliates from
minority interest owners. Resulting payments made to such
owners are generally considered purchase price for such
acquired interests. The estimated cost of purchases from
equity holders who have been awarded equity interests in
connection with their employment is accrued, net of esti-
mated forfeitures, over the service period as equity-based
compensation.

Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs incurred in securing credit facility
financing are capitalized and subsequently amortized over
the term of the credit facility using the effective interest
method.

Interest Rate Hedging Agreements
The Company periodically enters into interest rate hedging
agreements to hedge against potential increases in interest
rates on the Company’s outstanding borrowings. The Com-
pany’s policy is to accrue amounts receivable or payable
under such agreements as reductions or increases in interest
expense, respectively.

Income Taxes
In accordance with FAS 109, the Company recognizes
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected conse-
quences of temporary differences between the financial
statement basis and tax basis of the Company’s assets and lia-
bilities. A deferred tax valuation allowance is established if,
in management’s opinion, it is more likely than not that all or
a portion of the Company’s deferred tax assets will not be
realized.
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Foreign Currency Translation
The assets and liabilities of non-U.S. based Affiliates are
translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect as
of the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are trans-
lated at the average monthly exchange rates then in effect.

Equity-Based Compensation Plans
FAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
encourages but does not require adoption of a fair value-based
accounting method for stock-based compensation arrange-
ments which include stock option grants and grants of equity
based interests in Affiliates to certain limited partners or mem-
bers. An entity may continue to apply Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”) and related interpretations,
provided the entity discloses its pro forma net income and
earnings per share as if the fair value-based method had been
applied in measuring compensation cost. The Company
continues to apply APB 25 and related interpretations.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts included in the financial statements and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Recent Accounting Developments
In June 1998, the FASB issued FAS 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for deriva-
tive instruments which requires that all derivatives be recog-
nized as assets and liabilities and be measured at fair value. In
June 1999, FAS 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities—Deferral of Effective Date of FASB
Statement No. 133—an amendment to FASB Statement 133”
deferred the effective date of FAS 133 to financial statements
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. The Company
adopted this standard on January 1, 2001, and the adoption did
not materially impact its consolidated financial statements.

2. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company
to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally
of cash investments and investment advisory fees receivable.
The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents, short-
term investments and certain off-balance sheet financial
instruments with various financial institutions. These finan-
cial institutions are located in cities in which AMG and its
Affiliates operate. For AMG and certain Affiliates, cash
deposits at a financial institution may exceed FDIC insur-
ance limits.

3. FIXED ASSETS AND LEASE
COMMITMENTS

Fixed assets consist of the following:

At December 31,
1999 2000

Office equipment $ 10,735 $ 12,910
Furniture and fixtures 7,804 8,128
Leasehold improvements 3,872 6,091
Computer software 2,169 3,699

Total fixed assets 24,580 30,828

Accumulated depreciation (12,259) (15,482)

Fixed assets, net $ 12,321 $ 15,346

The Company and its Affiliates lease computer equipment
and office space for their operations. At December 31, 2000,
the Company’s aggregate future minimum payments for
operating leases having initial or noncancelable lease terms
greater than one year are payable as follows:

Required
Minimum

Year Ending December 31, Payments

2001 $7,506
2002 7,045
2003 6,152
2004 4,878
2005 3,456
Thereafter 9,783

Consolidated rent expense for 1998, 1999 and 2000 was
$6,278, $8,906 and $10,327, respectively.
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In 2000, the Company purchased property in Pride’s Cross-
ing, Massachusetts in contemplation of the development of
its new corporate headquarters. In connection with the
development of the site and the financing of development
costs, the Company subsequently transferred the property to
an entity held jointly with the financing underwriter. The
Company has since entered into a lease agreement with a
third party lessor, who has agreed to build the property,
arrange financing for the project’s costs and lease the com-
pleted facility back to the Company. The construction phase
is expected to continue through the end of the third quarter
of 2001. Lease payments will commence once the construc-
tion is complete.

4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the
following:

At December 31,
1999 2000

Accounts payable $ 2,538 $ 1,309
Accrued compensation 126,461 62,992
Accrued income taxes 24,964 2,683
Accrued rent 2,196 2,001
Accrued interest 1,731 369
Deferred revenue 1,774 1,633
Accrued professional services 1,291 1,241
Other 9,344 14,572

$170,299 $86,800

5. BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has two defined contribution plans consisting
of a qualified employee profit-sharing plan covering sub-
stantially all of its full-time employees and five of its Affili-
ates, and a non-qualified plan for certain senior employees.
Ten of AMG’s other Affiliates have separate defined contri-
bution retirement plans. Under each of the qualified plans,
AMG and each Affiliate are able to make discretionary con-
tributions to qualified plan participants up to IRS limits.
Consolidated expenses related to both the qualified and non-
qualified plans in 1998, 1999 and 2000 were $2,589, $8,728
and $10,759, respectively.

The Company’s contribution to the non-qualified plan (the
“Plan”) was $5,000 and $6,225 for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively. Plan balances are
invested equally between the Company’s Common Stock
and Affiliate investment products. These irrevocable contri-
butions were expensed when contributed and will be distrib-
utable to each participant beginning in 2001, with full vesting
occurring in 2004. Realized gains on undistributed balances
are paid currently to participants. Plan balances that become
forfeited upon employee termination are reallocated to
the remaining participants in accordance with the terms of
the Plan.

6. SENIOR BANK DEBT AND
SUBORDINATED DEBT

The Company has a $330 million revolving Credit Facility
(“Credit Facility”), which matures in December 2002. The
Company has the option, with the consent of its lenders, to
increase the facility by another $70 million to a total of $400
million. Interest is payable at rates up to 1.25% over the
Prime Rate or up to 2.25% over LIBOR on amounts bor-
rowed. The Company pays a commitment fee of up to 1⁄2 of
1% on the daily unused portion of the facility, which
amounted to $341, $297 and $252 for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively. The Com-
pany had $151 million outstanding on the Credit Facility at
December 31, 2000.

The effective interest rates on the outstanding borrowings
were 6.7% and 7.2% at December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively. All borrowings under the Credit Facility are
collateralized by pledges of all capital stock or other equity
interests in each AMG Affiliate owned and to be acquired.
The credit agreement contains certain financial covenants
which require the Company to maintain specified minimum
levels of net worth and interest coverage ratios and maximum
levels of indebtedness, all as defined in the credit agreement.
The credit agreement also limits the Company’s ability to
pay dividends and incur additional indebtedness.

As of December 31, 2000, the Company was a party, with two
major commercial banks as counterparties, to $185 million
notional amount of derivative contracts. These contracts
were closed in January 2001 in conjunction with the adoption
of FAS 133.
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During February 2001, the Company became a party with
two major commercial banks as counterparties, to $50 mil-
lion notional amount of swap contracts that are linked to the
three-month LIBOR. Under these swaps, the Company has
agreed to exchange the difference between fixed-rate and
floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the
$50 million notional amount. These contracts cap interest
rates on the notional amounts at rates ranging between
4.95% and 5.14%.

Two of the Company’s Affiliates also operate as broker-deal-
ers and must maintain specified minimum amounts of “net
capital” as defined in SEC Rule 15c3-1. In connection with
this requirement, one Affiliate has $800 of subordinated
indebtedness, which qualifies as net capital under the net
capital rule, while the second Affiliate maintains no such
indebtedness. The subordinated indebtedness is subordi-
nated to claims of general creditors and is secured by notes
and marketable securities of certain of this Affiliate’s mem-
bers other than AMG.

7. INCOME TAXES

A summary of the provision for income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
1998 1999 2000

Federal: Current $ — $35,658 $27,854
Deferred 10,238 12,762 5,606

State: Current 6,624 6,125 4,537
Deferred 172 2,174 955

Provision for 
income taxes $17,034 $56,719 $38,952

The effective income tax rate differs from the amount com-
puted on income before income taxes by applying the U.S.
federal income tax rate because of the effect of the follow-
ing items:

Year Ended December 31,
1998 1999 2000

Tax at U.S. federal 
income tax rate 35% 35% 35%

Nondeductible 
expenses 2 3 2

State income 
taxes, net of 
federal benefit 5 7 4

Valuation allowance (2) (1) —

40% 44% 41%

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as
follows:

December 31,
1999 2000

Deferred assets (liabilities):
State net operating loss 

carryforwards $ 1,326 $ 1,281
Intangible amortization (26,770) (35,089)
Deferred compensation — 1,934
Accruals 1,271 1,248

(24,173) (30,626)

Valuation allowance (1,173) (1,281)

Net deferred income taxes $(25,346) $(31,907)

At December 31, 2000, the Company had state net operating
loss carryforwards of $31,741 which expire over a period of
15 years beginning in the year 2001. The realization of these
carryforwards is dependent on generating sufficient taxable
income prior to their expiration. The valuation allowance at
December 31, 1999 and 2000 is related to the uncertainty of
the realization of these loss carryforwards.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company and its Affiliates are subject to claims, legal
proceedings and other contingencies in the ordinary course
of their business activities. Each of these matters is subject to
various uncertainties, and it is possible that some of these
matters may be resolved unfavorably to the Company or its
Affiliates. The Company and its Affiliates establish accruals
for matters that are probable and can be reasonably esti-
mated. Management believes that any liability in excess of
these accruals upon the ultimate resolution of these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial condition or results of operations of the Company.
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9. ACQUISITIONS

2000
On January 18, 2000, the Company acquired an equity inter-
est in Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC, a
Boston-based investment manager. AMG financed this
investment with a borrowing under its credit facility. The
results of Frontier’s operations are included in the consoli-
dated results of operations of the Company from its date of
acquisition, January 18, 2000.

1999
On January 6, 1999, the Company acquired an equity interest
in Rorer Asset Management, LLC, a Philadelphia-based
investment adviser. On April 1, 1999, the Company acquired
substantially all of the equity interests in The Managers Funds
LLC, which then served as the adviser to a family of equity and
fixed income no-load mutual funds. AMG financed these two
investments with borrowings under its credit facility.

The results of operations of Rorer and Managers are
included in the consolidated results of operations of the
Company from their respective dates of acquisition, January
6, 1999 and April 1, 1999.

1998
On March 20, 1998, the Company acquired an equity inter-
est in Essex Investment Management Company, LLC. Essex
is a Boston-based manager which specializes in investing in
growth equities, using a fundamental research driven
approach. AMG financed this investment through borrow-
ings under its credit facility and through issuance of shares of
its Series C Convertible Non-Voting Stock, for an equity
interest in Essex. The Series C Stock is non-voting stock and
carries no preferences with respect to dividends or liquida-
tion. Each share of Series C Stock converted into one share
of Common Stock on March 20, 1999.

On December 31, 1998, AMG acquired an equity interest in
Davis Hamilton Jackson & Associates, L.P. Davis Hamilton
is a Houston-based asset management firm with approxi-
mately $3.5 billion of assets under management at December
31, 1998. The Company issued notes to close the transaction
which were settled on January 4, 1999. AMG financed these
two investments with borrowings under its credit facility.

The results of operations of Essex and Davis Hamilton are
included in the consolidated results of operations of the
Company from their respective dates of acquisition, March
20, 1998 and December 31, 1998.

Purchase Price of Investments
The total purchase price, including cash, notes, common
stock and capitalized transaction costs, associated with these
investments is allocated as follows:

December 31,
1998 1999 2000

Allocation of 
Purchase Price:
Tangible equity, 

net of cash 
acquired $ 3,776 $ 340 $ 6,439

Intangible assets 115,793 103,160 97,999

Total purchase 
price $119,569 $103,500 $104,438

Unaudited pro forma data for the years ended December 31,
1999 and 2000 are set forth below, giving consideration to the
acquisitions occurring in the respective two-year period as if
such transactions occurred as of the beginning of 1999,
assuming revenue sharing arrangements had been in effect
for the entire period and after making certain other pro
forma adjustments.

Year Ended December 31,
1999 2000

Revenues $550,139 $459,816
Net income 75,465 57,654
Earnings per share—basic $ 3.40 $ 2.58
Earnings per share—diluted 3.33 2.53

In conjunction with certain acquisitions, the Company has
entered into agreements and is contingently liable, upon
achievement of specified revenue targets over a five-year
period, to make additional purchase payments of up to $25
million plus interest as applicable. These contingent pay-
ments, if achieved, will be settled for cash with most coming
due beginning January 1, 2002 and will be accounted for as
an adjustment to the purchase price of the Affiliate. In addi-
tion, subject to achievement of performance goals, certain
key Affiliate employees have options to receive additional
equity interests in their Affiliates.
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As part of all of the Company’s operating agreements (except
that of Paradigm Asset Management Company, L.L.C.)
Affiliate management owners have rights (“Puts”), which
require the Company to purchase their retained equity inter-
ests at staged intervals. The Company is also obligated to
purchase all remaining management owners’ interests (each,
a “Purchase,” and collectively, the “Purchases”) in Affiliates
upon death, disability or termination of employment. All of
the Puts and Purchases would take place based on a multiple
of the respective Affiliate’s Owners’ Allocation but using
reduced multiples for terminations for cause or for voluntary
terminations occurring prior to agreed upon dates, all as
defined in the general partnership, limited partnership
or limited liability company agreements of the Affiliates.
In addition, to ensure the availability of continued ownership
participation to future key employees, the Company has
options to repurchase (“Calls”) certain retained equity
interests in Affiliates owned by partners or members.

The Company’s contingent obligations under the Put and
Purchase arrangements at December 31, 2000 ranged from
$93 million if it is assumed that all such obligations occur due
to early resignations or terminations for cause, to $485 mil-
lion if it is assumed that all such obligations occur due to
death, disability or terminations without cause. Assuming
the closing of all such Put and Purchase transactions, AMG
would own the prospective Owners’ Allocation of all inter-
ests owned by Affiliate management described above, an
amount which totaled approximately $65.3 million in the
year ended December 31, 2000.

10. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares
of Preferred Stock in classes or series and to fix the designa-
tions, powers, preferences and the relative, participating,
optional or other special rights of the shares of each series
and any qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereon as
set forth in the Certificate. Any such Preferred Stock issued
by the Company may rank prior to the Common Stock as to
dividend rights, liquidation preference or both, may have full
or limited voting rights and may be convertible into shares of
Common Stock.

Common Stock
The Company has 80,000,000 authorized shares of Com-
mon Stock with a par value of $0.01 per share. Shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 1999 and 2000, were
22,936,597 and 22,041,681, respectively.

On March 3, 1999, the Company completed a public offering
of 5,529,954 shares of Common Stock, of which 4,000,000
shares were sold by the Company and 1,529,954 shares were
sold by selling stockholders. AMG used the net proceeds
from the offering to reduce indebtedness and did not receive
any proceeds from the sale of Common Stock by the selling
stockholders.

On April 20, 2000, the Company announced that its Board of
Directors had authorized a share repurchase program pur-
suant to which AMG can repurchase up to five percent of its
issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock in open mar-
ket transactions, with the timing of purchases and the amount
of stock purchased determined at the discretion of AMG’s
management. The Board of Directors authorized a similar
repurchase program in 1999. In the year ended December 31,
2000, the Company repurchased 1,261,800 shares of Com-
mon Stock at an average price of $38.68. In the year ended
December 31, 1999, AMG had repurchased 346,900 shares of
Common Stock at an average price of $26.83.

Stock Incentive Plans
The Company has established the 1997 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan, under which it is authorized to grant stock
options and to grant or sell shares of restricted stock to
employees and directors. In 1999, stockholders approved an
amendment to increase to 3,250,000 the shares available to
be issued under this plan.
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The plans are administered by a committee of the Board of
Directors. The exercise price of stock options is the fair mar-
ket value of the Common Stock on the date of grant. The
stock options generally vest over periods ranging up to four
years and expire ten years after the grant date. In connection
with the Company’s initial public offering in 1997, the Com-
pany granted stock options which were exercisable over
seven years, subject to acceleration if the Company achieved
certain financial goals. These options became fully vested on
December 31, 1999 when the Company achieved these goals.

The following table summarizes the transactions of the
Company’s stock option plans for the two-year period ended
December 31, 2000.

Weighted
Average

Number Exercise
of Shares Price

Unexercised options outstanding—
December 31, 1998 1,171,750 $26.34

Options granted 845,000 28.86
Options exercised (938) 21.65
Options forfeited (562) 14.25

Unexercised options outstanding—
December 31, 1999 2,015,250 $27.40

Options granted 869,000 49.86
Options exercised (324,225) 21.46
Options forfeited (100,875) 29.80

Unexercised options outstanding—
December 31, 2000 2,459,150 $36.02

Exercisable options—
December 31, 1999 887,750 $24.62
December 31, 2000 1,011,460 $30.84

The following table summarizes information about the
Company’s stock options at December 31, 2000:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Number Avg. Weighted Number Weighted

Outstanding Remaining Avg. Exercisable Avg.
Range of as of Contractual Exercise as of Exercise
Exercise Prices 12/31/00 Life (years) Price 12/31/00 Price

$10-20 2,950 7.8 $14.25 1,825 $14.25
20-30 1,291,700 8.0 27.09 662,075 25.56
30-40 335,500 7.5 34.69 222,560 34.64
40-50 409,000 10.0 47.94 20,000 47.94
50-60 420,000 9.6 53.13 105,000 53.13

2,459,150 8.6 $36.02 1,011,460 $30.84

Supplemental Disclosure for Equity-Based
Compensation
The Company continues to apply APB 25 and related inter-
pretations in accounting for its sales of Restricted Stock,
grants of stock options and equity-based interests in Affili-
ates. FAS 123 defines a fair value method of accounting for
the above arrangements whose impact requires disclosure.
Under the fair value method, compensation cost is measured
at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is
recognized over the expected service period. The required
disclosures under FAS 123 as if the Company had applied the
new method of accounting are made below.

Had compensation costs for the Company’s equity-based
compensation arrangements been determined based on
the fair value at grant date for awards consistent with the
requirements of FAS 123, the Company’s net income and net
income per share would have been as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
1998 1999 2000

Net income—
as reported $25,551 $72,188 $56,656

Net income—
FAS 123 
pro forma 24,408 68,463 48,962

Net income 
per share—basic—
as reported 1.45 3.25 2.54

Net income 
per share—basic—
FAS 123 pro forma 1.39 3.09 2.19

Net income 
per share—diluted—
as reported 1.33 3.18 2.49

Net income 
per share—diluted—
FAS 123 pro forma 1.27 3.02 2.15

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the
years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 were esti-
mated at $14.24, $15.62 and $26.11 per option, respectively,
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The follow-
ing weighted average assumptions were used for the option
valuations.

Year Ended December 31,
1998 1999 2000

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Stock price volatility 60.0% 50.8% 53.3%
Risk-free interest rate 5.38% 5.49% 5.72%
Expected life of 

options (in years) 7.0 8.4 7.2
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation for basic earnings per share is based on the
weighted average of common shares outstanding during the
period. The following is a reconciliation of the numerators
and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations. Unlike all other dollar amounts in these foot-
notes, net income in this table is not presented in thousands.

1998 1999 2000

Numerator:
Net Income $25,551,000 $72,188,000 $56,656,000

Denominator:
Average shares 

outstanding—
basic 17,582,900 22,180,112 22,307,476

Incremental 
shares for 
convertible 
preferred stock 1,376,768 374,174 —

Incremental 
shares for 
stock options 
and unvested 
restricted stock 263,163 138,730 441,119

Average shares 
outstanding—
diluted 19,222,831 22,693,016 22,748,595

Earnings per share:
Basic $1.45 $3.25 $2.54
Diluted $1.33 $3.18 $2.49

In March 1998, the Company issued 1,750,942 shares of Series
C Convertible Stock in completing its investment in Essex
Investment Management Company, LLC. Each share con-
verted into one share of Common Stock in March 1999. In
March 1999, the Company sold 4,000,000 shares of Common
Stock in a public offering.

On May 25, 2000, the Company’s shareholders approved an
increase in the number of authorized shares of voting Com-
mon Stock from 40,000,000 to 80,000,000.

For the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, the
Company repurchased a total of 147,000, 346,900 and
1,261,800 shares of Common Stock under various stock
repurchase programs.

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to market risks brought on by
changes in interest rates. Derivative financial instruments are
used by the Company to reduce those risks, as explained in
this note.

(a) Notional amounts and credit exposures
of derivatives
The notional amount of derivatives do not represent
amounts that are exchanged by the parties, and thus are not
a measure of the Company’s exposure. The amounts
exchanged are calculated on the basis of the notional or con-
tract amounts, as well as on other terms of the interest rate
swap derivatives, and the volatility of these rates and prices.

The Company would be exposed to credit-related losses in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparties that issued the
financial instruments. The Company does not expect that the
counterparties to interest rate swaps will fail to meet their
obligations, given their high credit ratings. The credit expo-
sure of derivative contracts is represented by the positive fair
value of contracts at the reporting date, reduced by the effects
of master netting agreements. The Company generally does
not give or receive collateral on interest rate swaps due to its
own credit rating and that of its counterparties.

(b) Interest Rate Risk Management
The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce expo-
sure to interest rate risk connected to existing liabilities. The
Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instru-
ments for trading purposes. Interest rate swaps allow the
Company to achieve a level of variable-rate and fixed-rate
debt that is acceptable to management, and to cap interest
rate exposure. The Company agrees with another party to
exchange the difference between fixed-rate and floating rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed
notional principal amount.

(c) Fair Value
FAS 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments,” requires the Company to disclose the estimated fair
values for certain of its financial instruments. Financial
instruments include items such as loans, interest rate con-
tracts, notes payable and other items as defined in FAS 107.
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Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquida-
tion sale.

Quoted market prices are used when available, otherwise,
management estimates fair value based on prices of financial
instruments with similar characteristics or using valuation
techniques such as discounted cash flow models. Valuation
techniques involve uncertainties and require assumptions
and judgments regarding prepayments, credit risk and dis-
count rates. Changes in these assumptions will result in dif-
ferent valuation estimates. The fair value presented would
not necessarily be realized in an immediate sale; nor are there
plans to settle liabilities prior to contractual maturity. Addi-
tionally, FAS 107 allows companies to use a wide range of val-
uation techniques; therefore, it may be difficult to compare
the Company’s fair value information to other companies’
fair value information.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approxi-
mates fair value because of the short-term nature of these
instruments. The carrying value of notes receivable approx-
imate fair value because interest rates and other terms are at
market rates. The carrying value of notes payable approxi-
mates fair value principally because of the short-term nature
of the note. The carrying value of senior bank debt approxi-
mates fair value because the debt is a revolving credit facility
with variable interest based on three-month LIBOR rates.
The fair values of interest rate hedging agreements are
quoted market prices based on the estimated amount neces-
sary to terminate the agreements. The fair market values of
interest rate hedging agreements were $1,218 and ($1,105) at
December 31, 1999 and 2000.

13. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL
DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly
results of operations of the Company for 1999 and 2000.

First Second Third Fourth 
1999 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenues $ 68,127 $ 78,577 $ 85,395 $286,627
Operating income 25,847 30,238 32,254 124,320
Income before 

income taxes 12,786 16,127 17,722 82,272
Net income 7,544 9,515 10,456 44,673
Earnings per 

share—diluted $0.36 $0.41 $0.45 $1.92

First Second Third Fourth 
2000 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenues $114,798 $110,895 $118,205 $114,810
Operating income 43,935 41,980 43,841 44,679
Income before 

income taxes 23,415 23,180 24,369 24,644
Net income 13,815 13,677 14,378 14,786
Earnings per 

share—diluted $0.60 $0.61 $0.64 $0.65

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company experi-
enced decreases in revenues, operating income and income
before income taxes from the same period in 1999 due to a
substantial decrease in performance-based fees earned by
several Affiliates. These fees are earned by the Affiliates when
their performance exceeds certain measurements set forth in
the advisory agreements with their clients. The substantial
decrease was offset somewhat by the growth in asset-based
fees resulting from positive net client cash flows.
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 1998, the Company initiated an employee loan pro-
gram. Loans to employees accrue interest at the lower
of 6.25% or the Applicable Federal Rate, have a stated 30-
year maturity date and are collateralized by real property.
Outstanding balances are payable in full generally one year
after termination of employment with the Company. At
December 31, 1999 and 2000, loans outstanding, including
accrued interest, totaled $5.4 million and $5.9 million,
respectively.

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company and its Affiliates provide investment advisory
services to mutual funds and individual and institutional
accounts. The Company’s revenues are generated substan-
tially from providing these investment advisory services to
domestic customers.

The Affiliates are all managed by separate Affiliate manage-
ment teams in accordance with the respective agreements
between the Company and each Affiliate. While the Com-
pany has determined that each of its Affiliates represents a
separate reportable operating segment, because the Affiliates
offer comparable investment products and services, have
similar customers and distribution channels and operate in a
similar regulatory environment, the Affiliates have been
aggregated into one reportable segment for financial state-
ment disclosure purposes.

16. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO DECEMBER
31, 2000 (UNAUDITED)

As of March 23, 2001, AMG had repurchased 14,000 shares
of Common Stock since December 31, 2000 at an average
price of $49.85.
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COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and
Related Stockholder Matters
Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange (symbol: AMG). The following table sets forth the
high and low closing prices as reported on the New York
Stock Exchange composite tape during the last two years.

2000 High Low

First Quarter $50 $33
Second Quarter 451⁄2 313⁄8
Third Quarter 641⁄4 421⁄2
Fourth Quarter 635⁄8 443⁄16

1999

First Quarter $331⁄16 $24
Second Quarter 321⁄4 25
Third Quarter 313⁄8 247⁄8
Fourth Quarter 407⁄16 23

The closing price for the shares on the New York Stock
Exchange on March 23, 2001 was $45.80.

From December 31, 2000 to March 23, 2001, we repurchased
14,000 shares of Common Stock at an average price per share
of $49.85 under a share repurchase program authorized by
our Board of Directors in April 2000.

As of December 31, 2000 there were 57 stockholders of
record. As of March 23, 2001 there were 46 stockholders of
record.

We have not declared a dividend with respect to the periods
presented. We intend to retain earnings to finance invest-
ments in new Affiliates, repay indebtedness, pay interest and
income taxes, repurchase our Common Stock when appro-
priate, and develop our existing business. We do not antici-
pate paying cash dividends on our Common Stock in
the foreseeable future. Our credit facility also prohibits us
from making dividend payments to our stockholders.
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capi-
tal Resources.”
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Boston, Massachusetts 02110
(617) 747-3300
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Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Mellon Investor Services
New York, New York

Stock Exchange Listing
New York Stock Exchange
Ticker Symbol: AMG

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be 
held at the offices of Goodwin Procter LLP,
Exchange Place, Boston, Massachusetts, on 
May 30, 2001.

Form 10-K
Copies of the Company’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission may be obtained without charge by
writing to the Company at:
Investor Relations
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.
Two International Place
Boston, Massachusetts 02110

This Annual Report to Stockholders contains 
forward-looking statements. There are a number of
important factors that could cause AMG’s actual
results to differ materially from those indicated by
such forward-looking statements including, but not
limited to, those listed elsewhere in this Annual
Report and in the Section titled “Business –
Cautionary Statements” in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2000 as filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission.
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